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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OR
THE ENVIRONMENT

Treat Hall is located on the sixteen-acy

educational institution situated in the
reflects a serene academic setting withi
idential homes.

structures exist consisting of dormitori
chapel.

Treat Hall is the academic and visual fo

current use for administration and class|

tectural and historical significance.

THE ARCHITECTURE

Treat Hall consists of the original buil
finished in the fall of 1916. The origi
basement. Its massing, materials and d

The campus, once a site
dant with mature maple, elm, and Colorad
1900's when Treat Hall was Colorado Wome

IGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

e campus of Colorado Women's College, a private
eastern section of Denver, Colorado. The campus
m a well established neighborhood of older res-
east of Denver on the open prairie, is now abun-
o blue spruce trees, all planted in the early
n's College. At present, over ten different

es, classrooms, recreation areas, library and

cal point of the campus; academic because of its
room activity, and visual, because of its archi-

ding finished in September, 1909, and the addition
nal structure is three stories with attic and
tail is Richardsonian Romanesque. The massing

walls, the round arches, the heavy stone, and the absence of ornamentation is character-

istic of the Romanesque style.

The Richardsonian influence is seen in the steep-gabled

wall dormers, round stone turrets, and the rock-faced masonry with round arches, lintels,

and trim of a different stone than the

lava stone, and the trim is red sandstone.

The original building is rectangular-sh
south facade.

entry is a single segmental arch window.

On the second floor above the main entry
arch window is located at either side, a
The third floor of the wing has a gable

The east portion of the south facade has
The second floor has six round arch wind
wall with three round arch windows and {
openings are located at the peak of the

The west facade has, at ground level, ei

On the first floor of thi
entry has a large round arch of sandston
smooth-faced sandstone, not typical of R

alls. The walls are constructed of Castle Rock

Both walls and trim.are.roughrfaced stone.

ped with a shallow wing at the west side of the

s wing is the original entry to Treat Hall. The
e. To the left is a one-story bay window of
omanesque architecture. To the right of the main

are three round arch windows. A single round
ne of which is directly above the bay window.
wall with four single round arch windows.

six segmental arch windows grouped in pairs.
ows grouped in pairs. The third floor has a gable-
wo chateau-type dormers. Two rectangular attic
gable.

ght lintel basement windows, grouped in pairs.

Three of the groups are located in the &est wall of the main building, and one group is

located in the west wall of the wing. T
Three are located in the main west wall,
second floor has four round arch window
third floor has a gable-wall area with

openings are located at the peak of the

The north facade is the south wall of th
At ground level are ten square lintel wi

!

he first story has four segmental arch windows.
and one is located in the wing west wall. The
in the same grouping as the first floor. The

hree round arch windows. Two rectangular attic
gable.

e court area formed as a result of the addition.
ndows, grouped in pairs. The first floor has five
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THE ARCHITECTURE = continued:

segmental arch windows and one segmental arch door. Two pairs of windows are located

to the left and one pair to the right of the door. The second floor has six round arch
windows grouped in pairs. The third floor has a gable-wall with three round arch windows
and two chateau-type dormers, each with two round arch windows.

The east facade has six square lintel windows, paired, and at ground level. The first
floor has three segmental arch windows. The second floor has three round arch windows.
The third floor has three chateau-type dormers, each with a single round arch window.

The roof drops to a point between the second and third floors. This point is character-
ized by smooth-faced stone banding and heavy block dentils, both encompassing the structure
except in the area where the addition is located. Stone turrets also are located at this
line on the gable corners. The roof is steep-pitched with high gables and covered with
asphalt shingles. Three stone chimneys protrude from the roof.

The addition is "T" shaped and attached at the northwest corner of the original structure.
It is a four-story structure with attic and basement. The Richardsonian Romanesque in-
fluence is again conveyed with the massing walls, round arches, chateau-type dormers and
twin towers. Face brick and terra cotta was used in its construction.

The west facade has the main entrance to Treat Hall. This entry is the focal point of the
west facade with its round arch recessed entry, terra cotta, and leaded glass windows. At
the top of the arch are the letters "CWC" interlaced in stone. The main wall on the first
three floors and the gable wall for the fourth floor and attic area are flanked by twin
towers, each over four stories and topped with an octagonal cone roof, each peaked with

an iron finial. Horizontal pointed decorative elements and staggered dentils are located
at the eaves of the towers.

The main entry of the first floor has a single terra cotta round arch window to either
side. Terra cotta and stone banding extends most of the-length of the west facade between
the first and second story. Six lintel windows grouped in pairs are located on the second
floor. The third floor has three arcading windows, each having two round arch windows.
The fourth floor has six round arch windows grouped in pairs. The attic area has three
round arch windows grouped together.

Each tower is octagonal with four lintel windows on each of the four floors, and twenty
small sealed round arch windows on the fifth level. Two chateau-type dormers with a single
round arch window are located on the third floor to the outside of the towers.

The north and east facades of the wing have evenly spaced lintel windows on all floors. The
south facade of the addition has five lintel windows at ground level and on the first
floor, six round arch windows on the second floor, and four round arch windows in the

third floor gable area, plus a small round arch window in the attic area.
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THE ARCHITECTURE - continued:

The north facade of the east wing has six lintel windows at ground level and on the first
floor, six round arch windows on the second floor, and on the third floor, a gable-wall
area with four round arch windows and one wood frame dormer with two round arch windows.

Early sketches of Treat Hall show a proposed north wing addition to the structure
creating one massive building. It was so designed as to add symmetry to the west facade.
This addition was never built. Instead, Foote Hall was constructed as a separate
structure, completed in 1929.
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DATES

1889--Architect's plans accepted from Frank H. Jackson and Betts.
excavation and walls with Hamilton and Harvey Stone Contractors.

1889-=-Contract for

1890--Contract for superstructure with Thomas H. 0'Neil.

1909--Construction
1916--Construction

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

completion of original building.
completion of addition.

Treat Hall symbolizes the beginning of Colorado Women's College, the first college

for women in the Rocky Mountain area.
Denver that was designed by the Architects Frank H. Jackson and Betts.

It was the only building of any importance in

The distine

guishable Richardsonian Romanesque style of the building, its unique location as a
familiar landmark in East Denver, and the emanation of its cultural and social heritage

would support the:.nomination of Treat Hall for The National Register of Historic Places.
THE HISTORY

The vision of a women's college in the Rocky Mountain West existed as early as 1886 when
the Reverend Robert Cameron, Pastor of Denver's First Baptist Church, recognized the nee
for such an institution through his mission work in the mountains. He discovered others
felt the same way. Consequently, in October 1887, Reverand Cameron obtained support
from the Rocky Mountain Baptist Association to pursue the idea for an institution of
higher education for women. Because of his dedication and his idea, Reverend Cameron
has been called the founder of Colorado Women's College. With the support of the asso-
ciation and the Colorado Woman's College Society the excitement of a 'Vassar of the West
began to prosper.

A twenty acre site was offered by Job A. Cooper, then governor of Colorado. The site
was located five miles east of and two hundred feet higher than Denver, and commanded
a spectacular view of the Rocky Mountains. In the fall of 1888 Colorado Woman's
College (as it was originally spelled) was established.

Architectural plans for the south wing were accepted from Architects Frank H. Jackson
and Betts in January 1889 and contracts for the excavation and foundation walls were
awarded to Hamilton and Harvey Stone Contractors. Not enough funds were available to
complete the building, but enough existed to begin. In February 1890, Thomas H. 0'Neil
was contracted to build the supersiructure..

The cornerstone was laid on May 25, 1890. Former Territorial Governor John Evans,
and a list of other notables, were there for the official ceremony.. The superstructure
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was completed but no funds were available to complete the interior. Consequently, the
doors and windows were boarded up, and. unknown to the founders, the building would not.
be .completed for eighteen years.

Financial pressures began to build in the early 1890's, creating further difficulty in
raising funds for the struggling college. Foreclosure procedings were threatened and
further attempts to obtain development funds failed.

At the beglnnlng of the new century a series of events occurred,and the fulfillment

of a woman's college began to take form. A loan was obtained from Elisha S. Converse of
Boston, a Baptist Women's Auxiliary was organized in 1902, and, Reverend W. T. Jordan

was appointed as full-time fundraiser. THrough their efforts the college moved closer

to reality. 1In 1904, Denver pastors reported to the college with hammers and saws. Their
task was to install the flooring in the building. '

On Thanksgiving Day, 1908, the trustees of the college met at 1908 Oneida Street, the

home of Trustee C. S. Prowitt. Here they unanimously voted to appoint Jay Porter Treat

as the first president of Colorado Woman's College. He was superintendent of schools

in Trinidad, -Colorado, and had expressed his desire to serve as the new president. Treat
was a native of Ohio, was married to Ellen B. Stockham, and he had degrees from Mount Union
College in Ohio. His philosophy was simple. Home life was most important. The college
should teach how to be good housekeepers, wives and capable mothers. He emphasized the
importance of womanhood, wifehood, and motherhood. ‘

Under his guidance the new college moved forward. The building was finally finished in
September 1909, and preparations were begun to receive the first class of fifty-nine students
The building was furnished through the efforts of the Women's Auxiliary and by churches and
other societies of Denver. Fifteen faculty members were -hired and the college began its
purpose of education for women. The first yearbook had to be handwritten because thay had
no money to have it printed. But, the college routine had settled in, and on June 6, 1911,
the first commencement occurred.

As the enrollment increased, it became necessary to add more dormitory and classroom space.
In 1913 the central section of the building was started, but again, finances prevented
its completion until 1916. In order to reduce cost and to expedite its completion, brick
and terra cotta were used in the addition in place of lava stone and sandstone.

A north wing was planned to be added to the building but it was never constructed. Instead,
a second building, Foote Hall, was completed in 1929. Since its beginning, the building was
referred to as.''The College', the "Administration Building', or "Old Main'". 1In 1930 Treat
Hall was named in honor of Jay Porter Treat, the college's first president.
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